
WAKE COUNTY FIRE COMMISSION 
 
Subject:  Agenda for April 13, 2023 Regular Meeting 
Location:  ESEC, 221 S. Rogers Lane, Raleigh, NC 27610   
Time:   6:00 PM 

Agenda 

♦ Meeting Called to Order: Chair Chris Perry 

• Invocation 
• Pledge of allegiance 
• Roll call of membership 
• Approval of Agenda 
• Approval of January 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
♦ Public Comments: 

♦ Regular Agenda 

• Ammendment to Fire Commission Rules of Procedure  
• Chair Appointment of New Committee Members 
• Wake County 200 Club Appointment 
• Fiscal Year 24 Reccomended Budget Presentation 

 
♦ Information Agenda 

• Fire Tax Financial Report – Budget Analyst Aaron Brown 
• Standing Committee Updates  

 Administrative  
 Apparatus 
 Budget 
 Communications 
 Equipment 
 Facility 
 Health & Wellness 
 Training 
 Volunteer Recruitment & Retention Committee 

• Chair Report 
• Fire Services Report  

 
 

♦ Adjournment - Next Meeting – July 13, 2023  6pm 

1



WAKE COUNTY  
FIRE COMMISSION 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Draft Minutes 

(Audio Replays of the meeting are available upon request) 

A meeting of the Wake County Fire Commission was held on Thursday, January 12, 2023 at 
6:00 PM. 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Wake County Fire Services Director Darrell Alford called the meeting to order. 

The following members were present: Chairman Chief Chris Perry (East Region), Chief Leroy 
Smith (South Region), Chief Ron Early (North Region), Chief David McNulty (North Region), 
Chief Chris Ward ( Region), Satish Garimella (Citizen/Consumer), Commissioner Matt Calabria, 
Bob Overton (Citizen/Consumer), Jason Joyner (Wendell), Brian McFeaters (Not for Profit Rep.), 
Brandon Zuidema (Municipal Manager), Jeff Silver (Subject Matter Expert), and Bob Stagg 
(Service Matter Expert).  

The following County officials and staff were present: Fire Services Director Darrell Alford, Wake 
County Deputy Director Ashley Jacobs, Fire Services Deputy Director Joe Vindigni, Fire Service 
Business Officer Diana McBride, Fire Services Logistics Manager Bud Davenport, Fire Services 
Systems Administrator Chris Hoffman, Budget Analyst Aaron Brown, Budget Management intern 
Madeline Yeung and Wake County Internal Auditor, John Stephenson.  

Wake County Fire Services, Director Alford called the meeting to order at 6:00pm, where Bud 
Davenport provided the invocation followed by the pledge of allegiance. He introduced new Fire 
Commission members Jeff Silver, Brian McFeaters, and Brandon Zuidema.   

ELECTION OF CHAIR 

Director Alford opened the floor for nominations for the Fire Commission Chairman position, 
where Subject Matter Expert Bob Stagg nominated Chief Chris Perry. Hearing no other 
nominations, he closed the nominations. Chief Perry was unanimously elected as Chairman 
by the Fire Commission.  

ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR  

Newly elected Chairman Perry opened the floor for Vice Chairman nominations, where he 

2



received a nomination for Citizen Rep. Bob Overton. The nomination was declined by Mr. 
Overton and a nomination for Todd Wright (Chief’s Association) was entered. Mr. Wright 
was unanimously elected Vice Chairman of the Fire Commission.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chairman Perry entertained Mr. Stagg’s motion to approve the agenda. The motion was 
seconded by Citizen Rep. Satish Garimella and was approved by the Commission.  

ADOPTION OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2022 FIRE COMMISSION MEETING 
MINUTES  

A motion to approve and adopt the September 15, 2022, Fire Commission Meeting minutes was 
made and seconded by Mr. Stagg. The minutes were carried unanimously by the Fire Commission.    

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No public comments. 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

REGULAR AGENDA 

200 CLUB 

Chairman Perry welcomed and opened the floor to Larry Stanford. Mr. Stanford presented the 
200 CLUB of Wake County to the Fire Commission. The 200 CLUB of Wake County is a 
501(c)(3) organization that supports families financially of fallen first responders. He requested 
the Commission designate a representative to inform the 200 CLUB of families in need and 
extended resources within their privy. Chairman Perry thanked Mr. Stanford and informed him 
that the Commission would provide a representative.       

FUND BALANCE UPDATE 

Wake County Finance Auditor John Stephenson provided background information and the status 
of the Fire Tax District fund balance.  

UPDATES TO THE STAFFING & COMPENSATION GUIDELINES 

3



Director Alford recommended that the Fire Commission accepts additional language to Appendix 
A to include annual salaries indicated for hourly employees are estimated based on the employee 
working all hours and obtaining all scheduled structural overtime. Chairman Perry requested 
differentiating the clarification with two asterisks (**). The Commission agreed and a motion was 
made by Mr. Overton. The motion was seconded by Mr. Garimella and was carried by the 
Commission.    

UPDATES TO THE FIRE COMMISSION RULES OF PROCEDURES 

Director Alford requested a Fire Commission Rules of Procedure change:  

Section V Item A 
Regular Meetings 

The Fire Commission shall hold quarterly meetings on the second Thursday beginning in January 
of each year, except that if a regular meeting day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on 
the next business day. The meeting shall be held at the Wake County Emergency Services Training 
Center unless otherwise scheduled elsewhere and shall begin at 6:00 PM 

Section VIII Item A & C 
A. Establishment and Appointment - The Fire Commission may establish and appoint
members for such standing and ad hoc committees as are required to help carry on the Fire
Commission’s work. The Fire Commission’s standing committees are:

Administrative  
Budget 
Capital  
Communications & Technology  
Volunteer Retention, Training Development & Wellness 

C - Standing Committee Appointments – The Fire Commission Chair shall make appointments 
for voting members to Standing Committees.  Each committee is composed of two members from 
each of the Wake County Fire Service Regions, citizen, SME’s or any other affiliated position 
from the Fire Commission.  In the absence of both members from a Fire Service Region, a Fire 
Chief from that region may vote on behalf of the region.  A Standing Committee Chairperson will 
be appointed by the Fire Commission Chair to manage activities of the Standing Committee.  The 
appointed Standing Committee Chairperson may be a fire service representative from any region 
or an appointed citizen member.  Each fire department can be represented by no more than one (1) 
voting member on each Standing Committee.   

All committees will remain intact until all subcommittee members have been notified and 
appointments selected. The change is expected after the April Fire Commission meeting. A motion 
was made by Mr. Stagg to accept the recommendation as presented. The motion was seconded by 
Mr. Satish and was carried unanimously by the Commission.  

4



LONG RANGE PLAN SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT 

Wake County Fire Services Deputy Director Joe Vindigni along with Fire Services System 
Administrator Chris Hoffman presented the latest targeted data analysis to the Commission. 
Deputy Director Vindigni requested departments to note fire reports with any mutual aid 
received for ISO credit, identify the number of people on the truck, label the type of call 
(emergency/non) and explain delayed responses i.e., weather, traffic etc. The Commission 
discussed the reported data and reflected on the growth of the Fire Tax District’s charge. To 
further assist the departments, Chris has developed a report that shows specific department 
call data and have reports available for departments to view. Inquire with Chris for custom 
parameters specific to your department. 

Deputy Director Vindigni also provided updates on the following projects: new stations and 
expects to have an update on the tanker study project by the next scheduled Long Range data 
analysis update and currently in the early stages of vetting a new RMS system vendor.  

INFORMATION AG ENDA 

FIRE TAX DISTRICT FINANCIAL REPORT 

Wake County Budget and Management Analyst, Aaron Brown introduced Budget Management 
Analyst Intern Madeline Yeung. Both Madeline and Aaron provided the budget update and Aaron 
updated the Commission on the next steps for the Compression Study. Aaron also provided an 
update for the Capital side and advised departments to submit any outstanding reimbursements 
before accounts close. 

Lastly, Aaron reminded the Commission of the “fun” January 13th budget/expansion submission 
deadline and to copy Madeline on all submissions.   

5



STANDING COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Administrative Subcommittee: 
There was no additional report outside of the Long-Range plan data analysis presented.    
 
Apparatus Subcommittee: 
No report. 
 
Budget Subcommittee: 
No report.    
 
Communications Subcommittee 
The TDMA project implementation date has moved up due to Johnston County proceeding with 
upgrading their radios ahead of schedule. The County will fund the TDMA project. The upgrade 
allows access to communicate over more channels with neighboring partners. 
 
Equipment Subcommittee: 
No report.    
 
Facility Subcommittee: 
No report.  
 
Training Subcommittee: 
No report.  
 
Volunteer Recruitment & Retention Subcommittee 
No report.  
 
Health and Wellness Subcommittee 
No report. 
 

CHAIR REPORT 
 

Chairman Perry gave a heartfelt tribute to Fire Services beloved Chief Tony Mauldin and requested 
a gesture of kindness be extended to the Mauldin family. It was agreed that a letter will be sent to 
the family from Wake County Commissioners in conjunction with the Fire Commission. 
 

FIRE SERVICES REPORT 
 

Director Alford’s report included an update on Academy 14, the class has lost three recruits 
bringing the academy to 33 recruits.  
 
The latest ISO rating for Wendell Fire Department is a class 1. 
 
The Northern Wake land search for the northwest area continues.   
   

6



Revenue Source Budget

Commitments 
(excluding 

pending) YTD Actual

Total 
Commitments + 

YTD

Budget Less 
Total 

Commitments + 
YTD

YTD % of 
Amended 

Budget
T127 NC DMV Taxes 0.00 0.00 1,365,162.87 1,365,162.87 (1,365,162.87) 0.00
T128 Refunds of NC DMV Taxes 0.00 0.00 (4,151.08) (4,151.08) 4,151.08 0.00
T200 Special District Taxes 35,080,000.00 0.00 29,445,926.26 29,445,926.26 5,634,073.74 83.94
C637 Municipal Reimbursement 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
N132 Interest - NCDOT - DMV Taxes 0.00 0.00 950.88 950.88 (950.88) 0.00
N140 Market vs Cost Investment Difference 0.00 0.00 86,527.32 86,527.32 (86,527.32) 0.00
N150 Interest Income/Pooled Funds 51,000.00 0.00 42,921.07 42,921.07 8,078.93 84.16
A370 Appropriated Fund Balance 12,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,200.00 0.00
A380 Prior Years Uncommitted Funds 481,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 481,000.00 0.00
Total Revenues       35,644,200                          -        30,937,337           30,937,337              4,706,863 87%

Expenditure Use Budget

Commitments 
(excluding 

pending) YTD Actual

Total 
Commitments + 

YTD

Budget Less 
Total 

Commitments + 
YTD

YTD % of 
Amended 

Budget
1101 REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES 325,099.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 325,099.00 0.00
2118 MEDICAL SERVICES - EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAM 220,000.00 135,690.00 21,068.04 156,758.04 63,241.96 9.58

2406 CONTRACTED SERVICES 127,200.00 3,038.56 20,624.75 23,663.31 103,536.69 16.21
3117 Computer Software Fees 300,050.00 0.00 239,291.01 239,291.01 60,758.99 79.75
3159 Food - Advisory Boards/BOC 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
3615 Cellular Voice and Data Service 83,496.00 0.00 6,929.20 6,929.20 76,566.80 8.30
3617 DISPATCH SERVICE 493,209.00 246,604.50 246,604.50 493,209.00 0.00 50.00
3714 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00
3721 RENTAL OF PROPERTY 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
4208 CITY OF RALEIGH HAZMAT PROGRAM 90,342.00 0.00 86,819.64 86,819.64 3,522.36 96.10
4224 NC DEPT OF NRCD - FORESTRY 98,640.00 62,617.11 36,022.89 98,640.00 0.00 36.52
4428 MISC CHARGES FROM OTHER DEPT/DIV 186,032.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 186,032.00 0.00
4446 800mhz charges from other dept 176,989.00 0.00 88,494.48 88,494.48 88,494.52 50.00
4447 CAD charges from other dept 37,726.00 0.00 282.10 282.10 37,443.90 0.75
4758 MV Tax Collection Costs 74,688.00 0.00 35,508.38 35,508.38 39,179.62 47.54
7102 LEASE PRINCIPAL - DEBT SERVICE 0.00 966.18 966.18 1,932.36 (1,932.36) 0.00
9109 Transfer to Debt Service from Fire Tax 1,747,533.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,747,533.00 0.00
Department Appropriations           31,656,196               16,059,414          15,537,881               31,597,295                       58,901 92

Total Expenditures       35,644,200           16,508,330      16,320,492           32,828,822              2,815,378 46%

WAKE COUNTY FIRE TAX DISTRICT 
FY 2023 SYSTEMWIDE OPERATING FINANCIAL REPORT  

As of December 31, 2022

7



Department  Budget

Commitments 
(excluding 

pending) YTD Actual

Total 
Commitments + 

YTD

Amended 
Budget Less 

YTD Actual

 YTD % of 
Amended 

Budget 
Apex FD        1,328,609               775,022           553,587            1,328,609                        -                 58.33 
Cary FD             59,000                        -                       -                          -                  59,000                    -   
Durham Highway FD        1,109,515               554,757           554,758            1,109,515                        -                 50.00 
Fairview FD        2,423,972            1,211,986        1,211,986            2,423,972                        -                 50.00 
Fuquay Varina FD        2,526,563            1,263,282        1,263,281            2,526,563                        -                 50.00 
Garner FD        2,864,467            1,432,233        1,432,234            2,864,467                        -                 50.00 
Holly Springs FD           816,194               408,097           408,097               816,194                        -                 50.00 
Hopkins FD        1,417,306               708,653           708,653            1,417,306                        -                 50.00 
Knightdale FD        2,244,915            1,122,458        1,122,458            2,244,915                        -                 50.00 
Morrisville FD           857,160               428,580           428,580               857,160                        -                 50.00 
Northern Wake FD        4,334,629            2,167,314        2,167,315            4,334,629                        -                 50.00 
Raleigh FD           300,000               300,000                     -                 300,000                        -               100.00 
Rolesville FD           787,586               393,793           393,793               787,586                        -                 50.00 
Swift Creek FD        1,048,894               524,447           524,447            1,048,894                        -                 50.00 
Wake Forest FD        1,946,060               973,030           973,030            1,946,060                        -                 50.00 
Wake-New Hope FD        1,986,220               993,209           993,110            1,986,319                     (99)               50.00 
Wendell FD        3,537,920            1,768,960        1,768,960            3,537,920                        -                 50.00 
Western Wake FD        1,005,788               502,894           502,894            1,005,788                        -                 50.00 
Zebulon FD        1,061,398               530,699           530,699            1,061,398                        -                 50.00 
Total      31,656,196          16,059,414      15,537,881          31,597,295                58,901 49%

WAKE COUNTY FIRE TAX DISTRICT 
FY 2023 DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATIONS

As of December 31, 2022

8



Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
045F New Stations $1,655,000.00 $1,655,000.00 $1,655,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,655,000.00
049F Garner #4, Fire Tax Portion $1,953,539.13 $1,953,539.13 $1,953,539.13 $1,953,539.13 ($0.00) $1,953,539.13 $0.00
057F Fire Planned Facility Repairs $1,596,153.38 $1,596,153.38 $1,596,153.38 $1,596,153.38 $0.00 $1,596,153.38 $0.00
119F Fire Planned Facility Repairs & Renovations - FY21 $331,000.00 $331,000.00 $331,000.00 $255,014.36 $9,405.98 $264,420.34 $66,579.66
131F Fire Facilities - Planned Repairs & Rennovations FY22 $324,000.00 $324,000.00 $324,000.00 $157,169.80 $165,555.32 $322,725.12 $1,274.88
140F Fire Facilities - Planned Repairs & Rennovations FY23 $252,000.00 $252,000.00 $252,000.00 $16,780.00 $142,802.72 $159,582.72 $92,417.28

$6,111,692.51 $6,111,692.51 $6,111,692.51 $3,978,656.67 $317,764.02 $4,296,420.69 $1,815,271.82

Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
041F CONTINGENCIES & GRANT MATCHES $131,603.00 $131,603.00 $131,603.00 $114,508.54 $0.00 $114,508.54 $17,094.46
066F Fire SCBA's $1,880,800.57 $1,880,800.57 $1,880,800.57 $1,870,932.36 ($0.00) $1,870,932.36 $9,868.21
093F Mobile Data Terminals $221,250.00 $221,250.00 $221,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $221,250.00
107F Turnout Gear - FY20 $308,000.00 $308,000.00 $308,000.00 $234,893.67 $0.00 $234,893.67 $73,106.33
115F Turnout Gear - FY21 $365,000.00 $365,000.00 $365,000.00 $253,078.98 $45,763.80 $298,842.78 $66,157.22
122F Pagers & Infrastructure $424,000.00 $424,000.00 $424,000.00 $122,606.53 $0.00 $122,606.53 $301,393.47
126F Turnout Gear - FY22 $471,000.00 $471,000.00 $471,000.00 $255,255.98 $121,696.28 $376,952.26 $94,047.74
127F Fire Defibrillators - FY22 $51,000.00 $51,000.00 $51,000.00 $40,661.70 $0.00 $40,661.70 $10,338.30
128F Fire Thermal Imaging Cameras - FY22 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
129F Fire Small Capital - FY22 $279,000.00 $279,000.00 $279,000.00 $271,905.98 $7,093.92 $278,999.90 $0.10
130F Fire SBCA's FY22 $212,000.00 $212,000.00 $212,000.00 $144,000.00 $0.00 $144,000.00 $68,000.00
139F Turnout Gear - FY23 $617,000.00 $617,000.00 $617,000.00 $0.00 $421,175.00 $421,175.00 $195,825.00
141F Fire Defibrillators - FY23 $78,000.00 $78,000.00 $78,000.00 $0.00 $49,409.89 $49,409.89 $28,590.11
142F Fire Thermal Imaging Cameras - FY23 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00
143F Fire Small Capital - FY23 $295,000.00 $295,000.00 $295,000.00 $205,071.00 $31,644.00 $236,715.00 $58,285.00
144F Fire SBCA's FY23 $311,000.00 $311,000.00 $311,000.00 $0.00 $190,742.34 $190,742.34 $120,257.66

$5,662,653.57 $5,662,653.57 $5,662,653.57 $3,512,914.74 $867,525.23 $4,380,439.97 $1,282,213.60

Division 8430 Fire Fighting Equipment

WAKE COUNTY FIRE TAX DISTRICT 
CAPITAL FUND BALANCE REPORT

As of December 31, 2022

Division 8420 Fire Facilities

Total Division 8430 Fire Fighting Equipment

Total Division 8420 Fire Facilities

9



Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
054F General Fire Apparatus $324,214.97 $324,214.97 $324,214.97 $160,924.12 $24,729.38 $185,653.50 $138,561.47
089F Apparatus Emergency Repairs $505,000.00 $505,000.00 $505,000.00 $415,391.21 $0.00 $415,391.21 $89,608.79
091F FY18 Large Apparatus - Rural $1,230,887.00 $1,230,887.00 $1,230,887.00 $1,230,887.00 $0.00 $1,230,887.00 $0.00
095F Cost Share apparatus debt payments $490,131.74 $490,131.74 $490,131.74 $486,143.38 ($0.00) $486,143.38 $3,988.36
103F FY20 Large Apparatus - Rural $1,789,053.00 $1,789,053.00 $1,789,053.00 $1,789,053.00 $0.00 $1,789,053.00 $0.00
104F FY20 Large Apparatus - Municipal $135,102.00 $135,102.00 $135,102.00 $135,000.00 $0.00 $135,000.00 $102.00
112F FY21 Large Apparatus-Cash $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $41,325.46 $0.00 $41,325.46 $38,674.54
113F Brush Trucks - FY22 $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $0.00 $105,683.40 $105,683.40 $87,316.60
114F Small Vehicles - FY22 $271,000.00 $271,000.00 $271,000.00 $171,020.26 $38,375.64 $209,395.90 $61,604.10
120F FY21 Large Apparatus-Debt $1,394,000.00 $1,394,000.00 $1,394,000.00 $1,370,774.00 $0.00 $1,370,774.00 $23,226.00
121F Northern Wake Tanker Replacement $380,000.00 $380,000.00 $380,000.00 $352,609.00 $0.00 $352,609.00 $27,391.00
123F FY22 Large Apparatus-Debt $2,296,000.00 $2,296,000.00 $2,296,000.00 $0.00 $2,185,510.00 $2,185,510.00 $110,490.00
124F FY22 Large Apparatus-Cash $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $50,562.69 $0.00 $50,562.69 $142,437.31
125F FY22 General Fire Apparatus $166,000.00 $166,000.00 $166,000.00 $32,938.76 $0.00 $32,938.76 $133,061.24
134F Brush Trucks - FY23 $214,000.00 $214,000.00 $214,000.00 $0.00 $52,841.70 $52,841.70 $161,158.30
135F FY23 Large Apparatus-Debt $1,662,000.00 $0.00 $1,662,000.00 $0.00 $1,625,120.00 $1,625,120.00 $36,880.00
136F FY23 Large Apparatus-Cash $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00
137F FY23 General Fire Apparatus $139,000.00 $139,000.00 $139,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $139,000.00
138F Small Vehicles - FY23 $124,000.00 $124,000.00 $124,000.00 $39,287.78 $0.00 $39,287.78 $84,712.22
145F Cost Share apparatus debt payments FY23 $233,000.00 $233,000.00 $233,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $233,000.00

$11,839,388.71 $10,177,388.71 $11,839,388.71 $6,275,916.66 $4,032,260.12 $10,308,176.78 $1,531,211.93

Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
099F Fire Capital Uncommitted $0.00 $2,205,734.51 $0.00 ($1,472.00) $0.00 ($1,472.00) $1,472.00
132F Reserve for Future Projects FY22 $223,750.00 $44,750.00 $223,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $223,750.00

$223,750.00 $2,250,484.51 $223,750.00 ($1,472.00) $0.00 ($1,472.00) $225,222.00

$23,837,484.79 $24,202,219.30 $23,837,484.79 $13,766,016.07 $5,217,549.37 $18,983,565.44 $4,853,919.35Total Fund:  4400 Fire CIP

Total Division 8499 Fire Capital Uncommitted

Division 8499 Fire Capital Uncommitted

Division 8440 Fire Apparatus

Total Division 8440 Fire Apparatus

10



GOOD OF THE GROUP 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned by Chairman Perry at 7:18pm. 

11



Item Title:  

Fire Commission Rules of Procedure changes 

Specific Action Requested: 

Fire Commission recommends changes to the following sections of the Fire Commission 
Rules of Procedure as indicated below: 

D. Standing Committee Procedures – The Chair of the Standing Committee will supervise
the meetings and all minutes and agendas.  Each member of the Standing Committee or
subcommittee of the Fire Commission shall be entitled to one vote, with the exception of the
committee chairperson. He/she shall only vote when a tie vote needs to be broken.

Remove the highlighted language 

Item Summary: 

During the re-structure of the Sub-Committees and subsequent appointment of new 
members, a question came up concerning this statement.  In order to align the 
Sub-Committees with the voting guidelines for the Fire Commission Chair, we 
propose to remove the language not allowing the Chair to vote unless it is too 
break a tie.    

Attachments: None 

12



Item Title:  
 
Fire Commission Subcommittee Members Updates 
 
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Fire Commission Chair makes the following appointments: 
 

Committee Regions Members Department 
        

Administrative  North Ron Early  Wake Forest 
    David McNulty Durham Highway 
  South Leroy Smith Holly Springs 
    Jim Jones Fuquay-Varina 
  East Tim Guffey Wake New Hope 
   Wayne Dupree Zebulon  

 West Mike Cooper Cary 

  Tim Herman Apex 
 

Committee Regions Members Department 
        

Budget North David McNulty Durham Highway 

    Donnie 
Lawrence Rolesville 

  South Leroy Smith  Holly Springs 
    Jim Jones Fuquay-Varina 
  East Brian Staples Wendell 
   Loren Cone Knightdale 

 West Mike Gerke Swift Creek 

  
Nathan 
Lozinsky Morrisville 

 
Committee Regions Members Department 

        
Capital North Donnie Lawrence Rolesville 

    Robert Cron Northern Wake 
  South Barrett Penny Garner 
    Barry Spain Fairview 
  East Chris Ward Hopkins 
   Brian Amerson Wendell 

 West Dan Carlson Swift Creek 

  Jeff Maynard Apex 
 

13



Committee Regions Members Department 
        

Communications North Mike Hodgeson Rolesville 
    Ryan Walsh Northern Wake 
  South Jason Hathcock Garner 
    Hunter Byars Holly Springs 
  East Chris Perry Zebulon 
   Chris Miller Knightdale 

 West Addison Lynch Swift Creek 

  Shevais Shrum Western Wake 
 

Committee Regions Members Department 
        

Volunteer, Training & Wellness North Bennett Jeffries Northern Wake 
    Mac Shultz Durham Highway 
  South Glenn Clapp Fairview 
    Zack Johnson Garner 
  East David Peruso Knightdale 
   Brandon Hopkins Zebulon 

 West Chris Salter Morrisville 

  Chris Dobek Swift Creek 
 

 
Item Summary: 
 
During our last Fire Commission meeting that was held on January 12, 2023, the Fire 
Commission approved a re-structure of our sub-committees. 
This will condense six committees into two committees – See Below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Standing Committee Appointments – The Fire Commission Chair shall make 
appointments for voting members to Standing Committees. Each committee is 
composed of two members from each of the Wake County Fire Service Regions, 
citizen, SME’s or any other affiliated position from the Fire Commission. In the absence 
of both members from a Fire Service Region, a Fire Chief from that region may vote on 
behalf of the region. A Standing Committee Chairperson will be appointed by the Fire 
Commission Chair to manage activities of the Standing Committee. The appointed 

14



Standing Committee Chairperson may be a fire service representative from any region 
or an appointed citizen member. Each fire department can be represented by no more 
than one (1) voting member on each Standing Committee. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
North Region Changes 
West Region Changes 
East Region Changes 
South Region Changes 
Overall Changes from the Regions 

15



1

Diana McBride

From: Early, Ron <REarly@wakeforestnc.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 6:29 PM
To: Joseph Vindigni; Darrell Alford
Cc: chief@rolesvillefire.com; mcnultyd@dhfd.org; blake.wright@northernwakefire.org
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub-Committee Members 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Wake County network. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

North Region Sub Commi ees 
Administrative – Primary – Ron Early (WFFD), Alt – David McNulty (DHFD) 
Budget – Primary – David McNulty (DHFD), Alt – Donnie Lawrence (RFD) 
Capital – Primary – Donnie Lawrence (RFD), Alt – Robert Cron (NWFD) 
Communications & Technology – Primary – Mike Hodgeson (RFD), Alt – Ryan Walsh (NWFD) 
Volunteer Retention, Training Development & Wellness – Bennett Jeffries (NWFD), Alt – Mac Shultz (DHFD) 
 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni <Joseph.Vindigni@wake.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 8:07 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; Early, Ron 
<REarly@wakeforestnc.gov>; mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole 
<admin@garnerfire.com>; Mike Gerke <mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com>; timothy.herman@apexnc.org 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
 
Good Morning,  
 
I just wanted to send out a quick reminder to send me your members for the new subcommittees today. 
We need this to get everything on the Fire Commission Agenda on‐time.   
 
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:35 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 

16



2

Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
 
I have added the other committees (Administrative, Budget, and Communications & Technology) to the attachment in 
case you have some adjustments to be made on those committees as well.   
 

Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of 
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
 
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:06 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
 

Good Morning Region Reps,  
 
During our last Fire Commission meeting that was held on January 12, 2023, the Fire Commission 
approved a re-structure of our sub-committees. 
This will condense six committees into two committees – See Below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Standing Committee Appointments – The Fire Commission Chair shall make appointments for 
voting members to Standing Committees. Each committee is composed of two members from each of 
the Wake County Fire Service Regions, citizen, SME’s or any other affiliated position from the Fire 
Commission. In the absence of both members from a Fire Service Region, a Fire Chief from that 
region may vote on behalf of the region. A Standing Committee Chairperson will be appointed by the 

17



3

Fire Commission Chair to manage activities of the Standing Committee. The appointed Standing 
Committee Chairperson may be a fire service representative from any region or an appointed citizen 
member. Each fire department can be represented by no more than one (1) voting member on each 
Standing Committee. 
 
Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
This will allow us time to get everything on the agenda for the April 13th Fire Commission meeting. 
 
Please see the attachment for the current members on the existing sub-committees.   
Thanks again – Let me know if you have any questions     
  
Thanks,  
Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 
NOTE: Wake County recently changed its domain. Our web address is now Wake.gov and county email addresses end in 
@wake.gov. Please update any contact information or bookmarks you have saved. E‐mail correspondence sent to and 
received from this address may be subject to disclosure under the North Carolina Public Records Act unless made 
confidential under applicable law.  

Correspondence to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law (NCGS Chapter 132) and may be disclosed 
to third parties. 

18



1

Diana McBride

From: Mike Gerke <mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 8:19 AM
To: Joseph Vindigni
Subject: Re: Fire Commission Sub-Committee Members 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Wake County network. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Joe,  
 
Below is the West Region subcommittee members. 
 
Admin: Primary‐Mike Cooper (Cary) /  Alternate‐Tim Herman (Apex)  
 
Capital: Primary‐Dan Carlson (Swift Creek) / Alternate‐Jeff Maynard (Apex) 
 
Budget: Primary‐Mike Gerke (Swift Creek)/ Alternate‐Nate Lozinsky (Morrisville) 
 
Communication: Primary‐Addision Lynch (Swift Creek) / Alternate‐ Shevais Shrum (Western Wake) 
 
Training and Recruitment: Primary‐Chris Salter (Morrisville) / Alternate‐ Chris Dobek (Swift Creek) 

Thank you 
 
Michael R. Gerke  
Fire Chief 
Swift Creek Fire Department 
5825 Tryon Road  
Cary, NC  27518 
(919) 851‐1324 (office) 
(919) 291‐2245 (cell) 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni <Joseph.Vindigni@wake.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 8:07 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov 
<rearly@wakeforestnc.gov>; mcnultyd@dhfd.org <mcnultyd@dhfd.org>; LeRoy Smith 
<LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; Mike Gerke 
<mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com>; timothy.herman@apexnc.org <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
  
Good Morning,  
  
I just wanted to send out a quick reminder to send me your members for the new subcommittees today. 

19



2

We need this to get everything on the Fire Commission Agenda on‐time.   
  
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
  

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:35 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
  
I have added the other committees (Administrative, Budget, and Communications & Technology) to the attachment in 
case you have some adjustments to be made on those committees as well.   
  

Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
  
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
  

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:06 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
  

Good Morning Region Reps,  
  
During our last Fire Commission meeting that was held on January 12, 2023, the Fire Commission 
approved a re-structure of our sub-committees. 
This will condense six committees into two committees – See Below:  

20



3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

Standing Committee Appointments – The Fire Commission Chair shall make appointments for 
voting members to Standing Committees. Each committee is composed of two members from each of 
the Wake County Fire Service Regions, citizen, SME’s or any other affiliated position from the Fire 
Commission. In the absence of both members from a Fire Service Region, a Fire Chief from that 
region may vote on behalf of the region. A Standing Committee Chairperson will be appointed by the 
Fire Commission Chair to manage activities of the Standing Committee. The appointed Standing 
Committee Chairperson may be a fire service representative from any region or an appointed citizen 

     

  

 

 

 

 

    

21



4

member. Each fire department can be represented by no more than one (1) voting member on each 
Standing Committee. 
  
Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
This will allow us time to get everything on the agenda for the April 13th Fire Commission meeting. 
  
Please see the attachment for the current members on the existing sub-committees.   
Thanks again – Let me know if you have any questions     
  
Thanks,  
Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
  
NOTE: Wake County recently changed its domain. Our web address is now Wake.gov and county email addresses end in 
@wake.gov. Please update any contact information or bookmarks you have saved. E‐mail correspondence sent to and 
received from this address may be subject to disclosure under the North Carolina Public Records Act unless made 
confidential under applicable law.  

22



1

Diana McBride

From: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 12:46 PM
To: Joseph Vindigni
Cc: brian.staples@wendellfire.org; Loren Cone; Fire Chief Ward; Tim Guffey
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub-Committee Members 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Wake County network. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Joe, 
 
Please find the East Region’s selected sub‐committee members…. 
 

NEW COMMITTEE  REGION REP #1  REGION REP #2 

     

CAPITAL  CHRIS WARD  BRIAN AMERSON 

     
VOLUNTEER RETENTION, TRAINING 
DEVELOPMENT, AND WELLNESS 

DAVID PERUSO  BRANDON HOPKINS 

     

ADMINISTRATIVE  TIM GUFFEY  WAYNE DUPREE 

     

BUDGET  BRAIN STAPLES  LOREN CONE 

     

COMMUNICATIONS & 
TECHNOLOGY 

CHRIS PERRY  CHRIS MILLER 

     

Chris 
 

Christopher C. Perry, CFO 
Fire Chief 
Town of Zebulon 
 
919.823.1840 office (direct) 
 
113 E. Vance Street 
Zebulon, N.C. 27597 
 

 
 
www.townofzebulon.org                                              
 

23



2

Email correspondence to and from this sender is subject to N.C. Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third 
parties. 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni <Joseph.Vindigni@wake.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 8:07 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; Mike 
Gerke <mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com>; timothy.herman@apexnc.org 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  
 
Good Morning,  
 
I just wanted to send out a quick reminder to send me your members for the new subcommittees today. 
We need this to get everything on the Fire Commission Agenda on‐time.   
 
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:35 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
 
I have added the other committees (Administrative, Budget, and Communications & Technology) to the attachment in 
case you have some adjustments to be made on those committees as well.   
 

Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
 
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 

24



3

331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:06 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
 

Good Morning Region Reps,  
 
During our last Fire Commission meeting that was held on January 12, 2023, the Fire Commission 
approved a re-structure of our sub-committees. 
This will condense six committees into two committees – See Below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Standing Committee Appointments – The Fire Commission Chair shall make appointments for 
voting members to Standing Committees. Each committee is composed of two members from each of 
the Wake County Fire Service Regions, citizen, SME’s or any other affiliated position from the Fire 
Commission. In the absence of both members from a Fire Service Region, a Fire Chief from that 
region may vote on behalf of the region. A Standing Committee Chairperson will be appointed by the 
Fire Commission Chair to manage activities of the Standing Committee. The appointed Standing 
Committee Chairperson may be a fire service representative from any region or an appointed citizen 
member. Each fire department can be represented by no more than one (1) voting member on each 
Standing Committee. 
 
Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
This will allow us time to get everything on the agenda for the April 13th Fire Commission meeting. 
 
Please see the attachment for the current members on the existing sub-committees.   
Thanks again – Let me know if you have any questions     
  
Thanks,  
Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  

25



4

Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

NOTE: Wake County recently changed its domain. Our web address is now Wake.gov and county email 
addresses end in @wake.gov Please update any contact information or bookmarks you have saved. E-mail 
correspondence sent to and received from this address may be subject to disclosure under the North Carolina 
Public Records Act unless made confidential under applicable law.  

26



1

Diana McBride

From: LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 1:27 PM
To: Joseph Vindigni
Cc: barry.spain@fairviewfd.com; Jim Jones; Matthew Poole
Subject: FW: --[EXTERNAL]--Fire Commission Sub-Committee Members

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Wake County network. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Below are the Southern region reps for the requested committee assignments. The reps on the 
remaining committees will remain the same.  

Capital Committee – Primary Representatives Southern Region (Barrett Penny & Barry Spain)  

Volunteer retention, training, and health and wellness Committee – Primary Representative 
Southern Region (Glen Clapp & Zack Johnson)  

 
Respectfully, 
 
LeRoy O. Smith IV 
Fire Chief 
Holly Springs North Carolina 
Cell: (919)427-9111 
Email: Leroy.smith@hollyspringsnc.gov 
 

Down these mean streets a man must go who is not himself mean. Who is neither tarnished or 
afraid. Raymond Chandler 
 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Warning: This email is subject to disclosure under the North Carolina Public Records Law (NCGS 132‐1).  

27



1

Diana McBride

From: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>
Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 2:07 PM
To: Joseph Vindigni; Fire Chief Ward; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith; 

Matthew Poole; Mike Gerke; timothy.herman@apexnc.org
Cc: Darrell Alford
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub-Committee Members  / Sub-Committee Chairs

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Wake County network. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Region Reps –  
 
An update related to sub‐committee members and the related sub‐committee chairs… 
 
Currently, the Fire Commission chair is charged with appointing sub‐committee chairs.  It is our intention to standardize 
the practice of allowing the sub‐committee to recommend a chair from their membership.  This has been happening 
with some committees, but not all, so we would like to standardize the practice.  I feel this is a good idea as the 
committees have a better handle on who can lead their group than potentially anyone else.  Additionally, it provides 
some periodic rotation of the various committee chairs. 
 
To that end, we intend to put a proposal before the Fire Commission at its April meeting that will amend the rules of 
procedure to mirror a committee chair’s voting ability to that of the methodology of the Fire Commission chair.  A 
committee‐selected chair would retain his/her ability to vote on issues.  As currently written, our rules of procedure do 
not allow the sub‐committee chair to vote unless there is a tie. 
 
Please take this into consideration as you select your committee representatives.  If we have individuals that we’d like to 
see serve as a committee chair, they would need to come from that committee.   
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out. 
 
Thanks. 
 

Christopher C. Perry, CFO 
Fire Chief 
Town of Zebulon 
 
919.823.1840 office (direct) 
 
113 E. Vance Street 
Zebulon, N.C. 27597 
 

 

28



2

 
www.townofzebulon.org                                              
 
Email correspondence to and from this sender is subject to N.C. Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third 
parties. 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni <Joseph.Vindigni@wake.gov>  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:35 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; Mike 
Gerke <mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com>; timothy.herman@apexnc.org 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: RE: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  
 
I have added the other committees (Administrative, Budget, and Communications & Technology) to the attachment in 
case you have some adjustments to be made on those committees as well.   
 

Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
 
Thanks,  

Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

From: Joseph Vindigni  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2023 10:06 AM 
To: Chris Perry <cperry@townofzebulon.org>; Fire Chief Ward <cward@hopkinsfire.com>; rearly@wakeforestnc.gov; 
mcnultyd@dhfd.org; LeRoy Smith <LeRoy.Smith@hollyspringsnc.gov>; Matthew Poole <admin@garnerfire.com>; 
mike.gerke@swiftcreekfire.com; Timothy Herman <timothy.herman@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Darrell Alford <Darrell.Alford@wake.gov> 
Subject: Fire Commission Sub‐Committee Members  
Importance: High 
 

Good Morning Region Reps,  
 
During our last Fire Commission meeting that was held on January 12, 2023, the Fire Commission 
approved a re-structure of our sub-committees. 
This will condense six committees into two committees – See Below:  
 
 
 

29



3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Standing Committee Appointments – The Fire Commission Chair shall make appointments for 
voting members to Standing Committees. Each committee is composed of two members from each of 
the Wake County Fire Service Regions, citizen, SME’s or any other affiliated position from the Fire 
Commission. In the absence of both members from a Fire Service Region, a Fire Chief from that 
region may vote on behalf of the region. A Standing Committee Chairperson will be appointed by the 
Fire Commission Chair to manage activities of the Standing Committee. The appointed Standing 
Committee Chairperson may be a fire service representative from any region or an appointed citizen 
member. Each fire department can be represented by no more than one (1) voting member on each 
Standing Committee. 
 
Please talk with your regions and send me an email with two members from your region for each of
these committees no later than Tuesday, April 4th at the COB.  
This will allow us time to get everything on the agenda for the April 13th Fire Commission meeting. 
 
Please see the attachment for the current members on the existing sub-committees.   
Thanks again – Let me know if you have any questions     
  
Thanks,  
Joseph M. Vindigni 
Deputy Director of Operations  
Wake County Government 
Fire Services & Emergency Management  
Joseph.vindigni@wake.gov 
919.856.5625 office | 919.815.5318 mobile 
331 S. McDowell St, Raleigh NC 27601 
wakegov.com 
 

NOTE: Wake County recently changed its domain. Our web address is now Wake.gov and county email 
addresses end in @wake.gov Please update any contact information or bookmarks you have saved. E-mail 
correspondence sent to and received from this address may be subject to disclosure under the North Carolina 
Public Records Act unless made confidential under applicable law.  

30



Committee Regions Members Department Committee Regions Members Department

Administrative North Ron Early Wake Forest Capital North Donnie Lawrence Rolesville
David McNulty Durham Highway Robert Cron Northern Wake

South Leroy Smith Holly Springs South Barrett Penny Garner
Jim Jones Fuquay-Varina Barry Spain Fairview

East Tim Guffey Wake New Hope East Chris Ward Hopkins
Wayne Dupree Zebulon Brian Amerson Wendell

West Mike Cooper Cary West Dan Carlson Swift Creek
Tim Herman Apex Jeff Maynard Apex

Committee Regions Members Department Committee Regions Members Department

Budget North David McNulty Durham Highway Communications North Mike Hodgeson Rolesville
Donnie Lawrence Rolesville Ryan Walsh Northern Wake

South Leroy Smith Holly Springs South Jason Hathcock Garner
Jim Jones Fuquay-Varina Hunter Byars Holly Springs

East Brian Staples Wendell East Chris Perry Zebulon
Loren Cone Knightdale Chris Miller Knightdale

West Mike Gerke Swift Creek West Addison Lynch Swift Creek
Nathan Lozinsky Morrisville Shevais Shrum Western Wake

Committee Regions Members Department

Volunteer, Training & Wellness North Bennett Jeffries Northern Wake
Mac Shultz Durham Highway

South Glenn Clapp Fairview
Zack Johnson Garner

East David Peruso Knightdale
Brandon Hopkins Zebulon

West Chris Salter Morrisville
Chris Dobek Swift Creek

31



Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
045F New Stations $1,190,000.00 $1,190,000.00 $1,190,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,190,000.00
049F Garner #4, Fire Tax Portion $1,953,539.13 $1,953,539.13 $1,953,539.13 $1,953,539.13 ($0.00) $1,953,539.13 $0.00
057F Fire Planned Facility Repairs $1,596,153.38 $1,596,153.38 $1,596,153.38 $1,596,153.38 $0.00 $1,596,153.38 $0.00
119F Fire Planned Facility Repairs & Renovations - FY21 $331,000.00 $331,000.00 $331,000.00 $255,014.36 $9,405.98 $264,420.34 $66,579.66
131F Fire Facilities - Planned Repairs & Rennovations FY22 $324,000.00 $324,000.00 $324,000.00 $157,169.80 $165,555.32 $322,725.12 $1,274.88
140F Fire Facilities - Planned Repairs & Rennovations FY23 $252,000.00 $252,000.00 $252,000.00 $87,152.62 $129,104.80 $216,257.42 $35,742.58
147F Knightdale Station 3 - Fire Tax Portion $465,000.00 $465,000.00 $465,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $465,000.00

$6,111,692.51 $6,111,692.51 $6,111,692.51 $4,049,029.29 $304,066.10 $4,353,095.39 $1,758,597.12

Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
041F CONTINGENCIES & GRANT MATCHES $131,603.00 $131,603.00 $131,603.00 $114,508.54 $0.00 $114,508.54 $17,094.46
066F Fire SCBA's $1,880,800.57 $1,880,800.57 $1,880,800.57 $1,870,932.36 ($0.00) $1,870,932.36 $9,868.21
093F Mobile Data Terminals $221,250.00 $221,250.00 $221,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $221,250.00
107F Turnout Gear - FY20 $308,000.00 $308,000.00 $308,000.00 $234,893.67 $0.00 $234,893.67 $73,106.33
115F Turnout Gear - FY21 $365,000.00 $365,000.00 $365,000.00 $253,078.98 $45,763.80 $298,842.78 $66,157.22
122F Pagers & Infrastructure $424,000.00 $424,000.00 $424,000.00 $122,606.53 $0.00 $122,606.53 $301,393.47
126F Turnout Gear - FY22 $471,000.00 $471,000.00 $471,000.00 $371,998.42 $13,521.28 $385,519.70 $85,480.30
127F Fire Defibrillators - FY22 $51,000.00 $51,000.00 $51,000.00 $42,608.70 $0.00 $42,608.70 $8,391.30
128F Fire Thermal Imaging Cameras - FY22 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,363.33 $0.00 $3,363.33 $1,636.67
129F Fire Small Capital - FY22 $279,000.00 $279,000.00 $279,000.00 $271,905.98 $7,093.92 $278,999.90 $0.10
130F Fire SBCA's FY22 $212,000.00 $212,000.00 $212,000.00 $144,000.00 $0.00 $144,000.00 $68,000.00
139F Turnout Gear - FY23 $617,000.00 $617,000.00 $617,000.00 $65,373.70 $362,149.00 $427,522.70 $189,477.30
141F Fire Defibrillators - FY23 $78,000.00 $78,000.00 $78,000.00 $49,976.39 $0.00 $49,976.39 $28,023.61
142F Fire Thermal Imaging Cameras - FY23 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00
143F Fire Small Capital - FY23 $295,000.00 $295,000.00 $295,000.00 $245,987.42 $31,644.00 $277,631.42 $17,368.58
144F Fire SBCA's FY23 $311,000.00 $311,000.00 $311,000.00 $0.00 $190,742.34 $190,742.34 $120,257.66

$5,662,653.57 $5,662,653.57 $5,662,653.57 $3,791,234.02 $650,914.34 $4,442,148.36 $1,220,505.21

WAKE COUNTY FIRE TAX DISTRICT 
CAPITAL FUND BALANCE REPORT

As of April 4, 2023

Total Division 8430 Fire Fighting Equipment

Division 8430 Fire Fighting Equipment

Total Division 8420 Fire Facilities

Division 8420 Fire Facilities

32



Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
054F General Fire Apparatus $324,214.97 $324,214.97 $324,214.97 $160,924.12 $24,729.38 $185,653.50 $138,561.47
089F Apparatus Emergency Repairs $505,000.00 $505,000.00 $505,000.00 $436,741.21 $0.00 $436,741.21 $68,258.79
091F FY18 Large Apparatus - Rural $1,230,887.00 $1,230,887.00 $1,230,887.00 $1,230,887.00 $0.00 $1,230,887.00 $0.00
095F Cost Share apparatus debt payments $490,131.74 $490,131.74 $490,131.74 $531,272.39 ($0.00) $531,272.39 ($41,140.65)
103F FY20 Large Apparatus - Rural $1,789,053.00 $1,789,053.00 $1,789,053.00 $1,789,053.00 $0.00 $1,789,053.00 $0.00
104F FY20 Large Apparatus - Municipal $135,102.00 $135,102.00 $135,102.00 $135,000.00 $0.00 $135,000.00 $102.00
112F FY21 Large Apparatus-Cash $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $46,322.77 $0.00 $46,322.77 $33,677.23
113F Brush Trucks - FY22 $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $0.00 $139,579.00 $139,579.00 $53,421.00
114F Small Vehicles - FY22 $271,000.00 $271,000.00 $271,000.00 $211,765.16 $0.00 $211,765.16 $59,234.84
120F FY21 Large Apparatus-Debt $1,394,000.00 $1,394,000.00 $1,394,000.00 $1,370,968.98 $0.00 $1,370,968.98 $23,031.02
121F Northern Wake Tanker Repalcement $380,000.00 $380,000.00 $380,000.00 $352,609.00 $0.00 $352,609.00 $27,391.00
123F FY22 Large Apparatus-Debt $2,296,000.00 $2,296,000.00 $2,296,000.00 $1,804,525.00 $380,985.00 $2,185,510.00 $110,490.00
124F FY22 Large Apparatus-Cash $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $193,000.00 $66,608.37 $0.00 $66,608.37 $126,391.63
125F FY22 General Fire Apparatus $166,000.00 $166,000.00 $166,000.00 $49,595.78 $0.00 $49,595.78 $116,404.22
134F Brush Trucks - FY23 $214,000.00 $214,000.00 $214,000.00 $114.84 $69,789.50 $69,904.34 $144,095.66
135F FY23 Large Apparatus-Debt $1,662,000.00 $0.00 $1,662,000.00 $0.00 $1,625,120.00 $1,625,120.00 $36,880.00
136F FY23 Large Apparatus-Cash $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00
137F FY23 General Fire Apparatus $139,000.00 $139,000.00 $139,000.00 $33,272.68 $0.00 $33,272.68 $105,727.32
138F Small Vehicles - FY23 $124,000.00 $124,000.00 $124,000.00 $102,312.87 $0.00 $102,312.87 $21,687.13
145F Cost Share apparatus debt payments FY23 $233,000.00 $233,000.00 $233,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $233,000.00

$11,839,388.71 $10,177,388.71 $11,839,388.71 $8,321,973.17 $2,240,202.88 $10,562,176.05 $1,277,212.66

Unit Unit Name
Budgeted 
Revenues

Actual 
Revenues to 

Date

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date Commitments

Actual 
Expenses to 

Date with 
Commitments 

and Pending

Remaining 
Expenditure 

Budget
099F Fire Capital Uncommitted $0.00 $2,255,075.48 $0.00 ($1,472.00) $0.00 ($1,472.00) $1,472.00
132F Reserve for Future Projects FY22 $223,750.00 $44,750.00 $223,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $223,750.00

$223,750.00 $2,299,825.48 $223,750.00 ($1,472.00) $0.00 ($1,472.00) $225,222.00

$23,837,484.79 $24,251,560.27 $23,837,484.79 $16,160,764.48 $3,195,183.32 $19,355,947.80 $4,481,536.99

$23,837,484.79 $24,251,560.27 $23,837,484.79 $16,160,764.48 $3,195,183.32 $19,355,947.80 $4,481,536.99

Total Division 8499 Fire Capital Uncommitted

Total Department  84 Fire And Rescue CIP

Total Fund:  4400 Fire CIP

Total Division 8440 Fire Apparatus

Division 8499 Fire Capital Uncommitted

Division 8440 Fire Apparatus

33


	WAKE COUNTY FIRE COMMISSION
	Location:  ESEC, 221 S. Rogers Lane, Raleigh, NC 27610
	Draft Minutes January 12, 2023 Regular Meeting.pdf
	A meeting of the Wake County Fire Commission was held on Thursday, January 12, 2023 at 6:00 PM.
	Wake County Fire Services Director Darrell Alford called the meeting to order.
	ELECTION OF CHAIR
	ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	A motion to approve and adopt the September 15, 2022, Fire Commission Meeting minutes was made and seconded by Mr. Stagg. The minutes were carried unanimously by the Fire Commission.

	FY24 Final Fire Tax District Presentation.pdf
	Fire Tax District
	Looking Back at FY23
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Back to the New Normal
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Revenue Picture  
	Slide Number 17
	Wake County Fire Tax District Municipal Partners
	Slide Number 19
	Funding commitment of over $7 million��Paved the way �for other enhancements
	FY2024 Fire Property Tax Revenue Projection
	FY24 Operating 
	Systemwide Operating Expense���FY24 = $2.26M �($357K increase)
	FY24 Base Budget = $33.6M ($1.5M over last year)
	Employee Benefits��
	Additional Staffing & Personnel Budget Items = $218K
	Maintain the Employee Pipeline – Recruit Academy 15
	Operating Budget: Summary FY24   
	Capital Requests 
	FY24 Capital Model
	Scheduled Technology Upgrades – via ARPA Funds = $1.2M��(No cost to municipal partners)�
	Firefighter Cancer Prevention��11 Actions Identified for Mitigation
	Second set of PPE (Coat, Pant and Hood) for Career Firefighters�
	$2.1M Recommended for Scheduled Equipment Replacements and Enhancements
	Scheduled Apparatus Replacements = $4.62M�
	New Capital Apparatus Agreement with Municipalities �Total FY24 Amount = $327K �
	FY24 Fire Station Repairs = $154K�
	FY24 Facility Condition Assessment Repairs = $116K�
	One new station project = $1.5M total county contribution over 10-plus years
	New Station Construction Updates�
	Long Range Plan Standards – Areas to be Monitored for Future Planning
	FY24 Other Annual Capital Expenses = $3.1M 
	FY24 Operating Budget Breakdown
	FY24 Not Recommended for Funding 
	FY24 Recommended Budget = $44.8M
	FY24 Recommended Budget = $44.8M
	Projected Tax Rate Outlook
	Projected Tax Rate Outlook
	Horizon Opportunities
	Next Steps

	Summary.pdf
	Sheet1




